# COLLECTIVE GAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MANHATTAN EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

**AND** 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

**SCHOOL DISTRICT #3** 

MANHATTAN, MONTANA

2022-2024

AMENDED 2/14/2023 AND 6/13/2023

# **Table of Contents**

AGREEM	IENT	. 4
ARTICLE	E 1	. 4
Recogn	ition	. 4
1.1	Association Recognition	. 4
1.2	Teacher Definition	. 4
1.3	Appropriate Unit Definition	. 4
ARTICLE	E II	. 5
Associa	ation Rights	. 5
2.1	Information	. 5
2.2	Meetings	. 5
2.3	Association Business	. 5
2.4	Association Use of School Equipment	. 5
2.5	Posting Notices	. 5
2.6	Exclusive Rights of Association	. 5
2.7	Association Leave	. 5
2.8	Notification of School Board Meetings	. 6
ARTICLE	E III	6
Profess	ional Fees and Dues: Payroll Deductions	. 6
3.1	Dues Deduction Authorized	6
3.2	Other Payroll Deductions	. 6
ARTICLE	E IV	. 6
Teache	r Rights	. 6
4.1	Teacher Rights	. 6
ARTICLE	E V	. 6
Board I	Rights	6
5.1	Board Rights	6
ARTICLE	E VI	. 7
Grievar	nce Procedure	. 7
6.1	Definitions	. 7
6.2	Rights to Representation	. 7
6.3	Individual Rights	. 7
6.4	Procedure	. 7
6.5	Exception to Time Limits	. 9
6.6	Election of Remedy	. 9
6.7	Cooperation of Board, Administration and Association	. 9

6.8	No Reprisals	9
6.9	Personnel Files	9
ARTICLE	VII	9
Promotio	ons, Vacancies, Transfers	9
7.1	Notice of Vacancies	9
7.2	Filling of Vacancies	9
ARTICLE	VIII	10
Work Ye	ear	10
8.1	School Calendar	10
8.2	Defined Duty Days	10
ARTICLE	IX	10
Student '	Teacher Program	10
9.1	Supervising Teacher Program	10
9.2	Supervising Teacher – Cooperation	10
9.3	Supervising Teacher – Remuneration	10
9.4	Student Teachers – Use as Substitutes	10
ARTICLE	X	10
Teacher	Evaluation	10
10.1	Monitoring and Observation of Teacher	10
ARTICLE	XI	11
Leaves		11
11.1	Discretionary Leave	11
11.2	Leave for Civic Duties	13
11.3	Leave for Public Office	13
11.4	Extended Leave	13
11.4.1	Extended Leave for Professional Growth	13
11.5	Accumulated Sick Days	13
11.6	Sabbatical Leave	14
11.7	Professional Leave for Special Education Teachers	14
ARTICLE	XII	15
Profession	onal Compensation	15
12.1	Salary Schedule	15
12.2	Recognition for Experience	15
12.3	Extended Employment	
12.4	Recognition for Additional Preparation	15
12.5	Pay Periods	

12.6	Mileage Allowance	17
12.7	Attainment Level	17
12.8	Teacher Base Pay - HB 143	17
ARTICLE	XIII	18
SALARY	SCHEDULE	18-19
EXTRA-D	UTY SCHEDULE	20
EXTRA	-CURRICULAR SALARIES	21
EXTE	ENDED SEASON STIPEND	21
LONG	GEVITY INCENTIVE	22
ARTICLE	XIV	23
Benefits		23
14.1	Health Insurance	23
14.2	Mutual Selection of Carriers	23
14.3	Continuity of Coverage	23
14.4	Retired Teacher Benefits	23
14.5	Enrollment/Discontinuation of Health Benefits	23
14.6	Early Retirement Payment	24
14.7	Accumulated Leave Payment	24
ARTICLE	XV	25
Effect of	f Agreement	25
15.1	Effect	25
15.2	Changes of Agreement	25
15.3	Severability	25
15.4	Duplication and Distribution	25
ARTICLE	XVI	26
Term/Re	e-opener	26
16.1	Effective Period	26
16.2	Renewal and Re-Opening of Agreement	26
APPENDI	X A	
CDIEVA	ANCE DEDOCT FORM (Loyal I. Loyal II. Loyal III.)	28 20

# REFERENCE INFORMATION

Reduction in Force (RIF) – refer to School District Policy 5256 Just Cause as defined by law

**NOTE:** Salary and Fringe Benefit provisions of this Agreement are contingent upon the successful passage of a mill levy to support it. If the mill levy fails, salary and fringe benefit provisions will be renegotiated.

#### **AGREEMENT**

This will be a one year agreement between the Board of Trustees, School District Number Three and High School District Number Three, Gallatin County, Manhattan, Montana hereinafter called the "Board", and the Manhattan Education Association, hereinafter called the "Association."

It is hereby agreed as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1**

# Recognition

# 1.1 Association Recognition

The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative for collective gaining with respect to wages, hours, fringe benefits, and other conditions of employment for all employees in the appropriate unit.

#### 1.2 Teacher Definition

Unless otherwise indicated, the "Teacher" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer to all employees in the appropriate unit.

# 1.3 Appropriate Unit Definition

The appropriate unit shall consist of all district employees with the exception of:

SuperintendentSchool CooksPrincipalsSchool CustodiansBusiness ManagerSecretariesSchool ClerksSubstitute TeachersSpecial Education DirectorTeacher AidesCurriculum DirectorMaintenance

#### **ARTICLE II**

# **Association Rights**

# 2.1 Information

The Board agrees to furnish to the Association in response to requests, all reasonable information concerning the financial resources of the district, including financial reports and audits, and registers of certified personnel meetings. The providing of any additional information will be at the discretion of the Office of the Superintendent.

## 2.2 Meetings

The exclusive representative shall have the right to use available school buildings at reasonable hours for meetings. Scheduling shall be subject to the approval of the Office of the Superintendent in advance of the time and place of such meetings.

#### 2.3 Association Business

Representatives of the Manhattan Education Association will be permitted to transact official Association business on school property, provided that this shall not disrupt normal school operations.

# 2.4 Association Use of School Equipment

The Association shall have the right to use, with permission from the Office of the Superintendent, school facilities and equipment including typewriters, duplicating equipment, computers, calculating machines, and all types of audio-visual equipment when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay the reasonable cost for all materials and supplies incident to such use.

# 2.5 Posting Notices

The Association and its representatives shall have the right to post notices of activities and matters of Association concern on teacher bulletin boards, at least one of which shall be provided in each school building. The Association may use district mail service and teacher mailboxes for communications to teachers. No material shall be placed in the teachers' mailboxes that can be construed to deal with participation in, or information about any strike, work stoppage, or work slowdown.

# 2.6 Exclusive Rights of Association

The rights and privileges of the Association and its representatives as set forth in the Agreement shall be granted only to the Association as the exclusive representative of the Teachers, and to no other competing organization.

# 2.7 Association Leave

Four (4) workdays will be authorized for the attendance of Association officers and delegates to Association meetings. Allotment of the four (4) workdays may be made on the basis of the person for four (4) workdays or four (4) persons for one (1) workday, or other alternate proposals but not resulting in a total of more than four (4) days. The districts will not pay the necessary substitutes.

# 2.8 Notification of School Board Meetings

A copy of the letter sent to board members prior to all board meetings will at the same time be mailed to the local Association president.

#### **ARTICLE III**

# **Professional Fees and Dues: Payroll Deductions**

#### 3.1 Dues Deduction Authorized

- A. The school district shall deduct from the salaries of teachers, such monies for the exclusive representative as said teachers individually authorize for the school district to so deduct. Commencing in September and each month thereafter, the school district shall deduct in equal installments the monies that the teacher has agreed to pay the exclusive representative during the period provided in the individual's authorization. New authorizations, when received by the school district during the school year, will be deducted in equal installments over the remaining monthly payments of the teacher's current contracted salary.
- B. The secretary of the exclusive representative will certify to the school district the current rate of membership dues and the names of individuals who have joined the exclusive representative.
- C. The school district shall transmit all deducted monies, along with a list of names for whom deductions are made to the secretary-treasurer of the exclusive representative on a monthly basis.

# 3.2 Other Payroll Deductions

Upon appropriate written authorization for the teacher, the Board shall deduct from the salary of any teacher and make appropriate remittance for annuities, credit union, bonds, insurance, or any other plan or programs.

#### **ARTICLE IV**

# **Teacher Rights**

# 4.1 Teacher Rights

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any teacher such rights as he or she may have under Montana School Laws or other state laws and regulations. However, this does not incorporate these laws and regulations into this contract.

## **ARTICLE V**

#### **Board Rights**

#### 5.1 Board Rights

The Association recognizes that the Board has final responsibility and authority to manage and direct, in behalf of the public, all the operations and activities of the school district to the full extent authorized by law.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

# **Grievance Procedure**

#### **6.1** Definitions

- A. A grievance is defined as a claim based upon an event or condition which affects the conditions or circumstances under which a teacher works, allegedly caused by misinterpretation or application of written district policies, State Law, or terms of this negotiated agreement. Grievance of written district policies and state law may be grieved to Level III of the grievance procedures.
- B. A grievant is a teacher, or group of teachers or the Association filing grievances.
- C. A party in interest is the person, or group of persons, making the claim and any person who might be required to take action or against whom action might be taken in order to resolve the claim.
- D. Days mean teacher workdays, except as otherwise indicated. If the stipulated time limits are not met, the grievant shall have the right to appeal the grievance to the next level of the procedure.

# **6.2** Rights to Representation

- A. At least one Association representative can be present at proceedings at which the grievant needs to attend.
- B. If, in the judgment of the Association, a grievance affects a group of teachers or the Association, the Association may initiate and submit such grievance in writing to the Office of the Superintendent and the processing of such grievance shall be commenced at Level II. The Association may process such grievance through all levels of the procedure, even though there is no individual aggrieved person who wishes to do so. Class grievances involving more than one supervisor, and grievances involving the administrator above the building level, may be filed by the Association at Level II.
- C. In matters dealing with alleged violation of Association rights, the grievance shall be initiated at Level II.
- D. The Association on its own may continue to submit to the Board any grievance filed and later dropped by the grievant within fifteen (15) days of the time dropped by the grievant, provided that the grievance involves the application or interpretation of the Agreement.

#### 6.3 Individual Rights

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the rights of any teacher having a complaint outside the Agreement to utilize the existing complaint procedure.

# 6.4 Procedure

Level I. The parties in interest acknowledge that it is usually most desirable for any employee and his immediately involved supervisor to resolve problems through free and normal communications. Within twenty (20) work days following the knowledge of the act or condition which is the basis of the complaint, the grievant may present the grievance in writing to the immediately involved supervisor, who will arrange for a meeting to take place within five (5) days after receipt of the grievance. The grievant and/or the Association and the supervisor shall be present for the meeting. The supervisor shall provide the aggrieved party and the Association with

a written answer to the grievance within ten (10) days after the meeting. Such answer shall include the reasons upon which the decision was based.

**Level II.** If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of his grievance at Level I, or if no decision has been rendered within the ten (10) school days after presentation of the grievance, then the grievance may be referred to the Office of the Superintendent. The Office of the Superintendent shall arrange for a hearing with the grievant and/or the Association to take place within ten (10) days of his receipt of the appeal. The parties in interest shall have the right to include in the presentation such witnesses and counselors as they deem necessary to develop facts pertinent to the grievance. Upon conclusion of the hearings, the Office of the Superintendent will have ten (10) days to provide his written decision, together with the reasons for the decision to the Association.

**Level III.** If the grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at the second level, the aggrieved teacher shall file within ten (10) school days of the Superintendent's written decision, a copy of the grievance with the School Board. Within ten (10) school days after such grievance is filed, the grievant and/or representative of the grievant as desired, the Superintendent of his designee, and the Board of its designated commit shall meet to resolve the grievance.

**Level IV:** If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Board, and if the grievance involves an unresolved and disputed interpretation in this Agreement, it may be submitted before an impartial arbitrator. Each party shall exercise its right to arbitration by giving the other party written notice of its intention to arbitrate within ten (10) days of the rendering of a decision at Level III. If any questions arise as to arbitrability, such questions will first be ruled upon by the arbitrator selected to hear the dispute.

Within ten (10) days after such written notice of submission to arbitration, the superintendent and the exclusive representative will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator and to obtain a commitment from such arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator or to obtain such a commitment within the ten (10) day period, a request for a list of arbitrators may be made to the Board of Personnel Appeals. If either party objects to the Board of Personnel Appeals lists, a request for an arbitrators list will be made to the American Arbitration Association and an arbitrator will be selected from that list.

The arbitrator selected will confer with the representative of the Board and the grievant and representative and hold hearings promptly and will issue his decision not later than thirty (30) days from the date of the submission of the final statements. The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth findings of fact, reasoning and conclusions on the issues submitted. The decision of the arbitrator will be submitted to the Board and the exclusive representative and will be final and binding upon the parties.

**Arbitration Costs:** Each party shall bear its own costs of arbitration except that the fees and charges of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties.

**Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator:** The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator's decision shall be based upon the specific provisions of this Agreement. This arbitration provision shall be for grievances only. There shall be no interest in arbitration.

# **6.5** Exception to Time Limits

The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed unless extended by written agreement of the parties. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising thereunder may be processed through this grievance procedure until resolution. It is understood that in order to be processed, the grievance would have to be filed prior to the expiration date of this Agreement.

# **6.6** Election of Remedy

Once the grievant has filed any complaint, appeal or other action with any county, state or federal agency, court, tribunal or other forum involving the same facts or circumstances all rights to file or pursue a grievance under this Article shall be forever waived.

# 6.7 Cooperation of Board, Administration and Association

The Board, Administration, and the Association will cooperate in investigation of any grievance, and will furnish such information as is required through mutual agreement for the processing of any grievance.

## 6.8 No Reprisals

No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the Board, administration or Association because of participation in the grievance procedure.

#### **6.9** Personnel Files

All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the evaluation files of the participants. (See appendix A for the Grievance Report Form.)

#### **ARTICLE VII**

# **Promotions, Vacancies, Transfers**

#### 7.1 Notice of Vacancies

Information regarding vacancies and new positions shall be publicized to the staff by posting notices in the high school and elementary school teacher's lounges prior to advertisement. Where specific training experience or other qualifications are prerequisites for any position that is available, such conditions shall be stated in the job description.

#### 7.2 Filling of Vacancies

Staff members may apply for any vacancy and shall be given consideration for the position if qualified.

#### **ARTICLE VIII**

# **Work Year**

#### 8.1 School Calendar

The scheduling of duty days shall be recommended to the Board each year by a joint committee comprised of staff, administration, and board members. The school calendar shall be determined prior to May 1 for the succeeding year.

# 8.2 Defined Duty Days

Teacher contract is 166 days. Contract days consist of 152 student contact days (or equal to, but not less than, 1080 hours) and 14 days of Pupil Instruction Related days, as defined by OPI. Any district required days, hours, or Curriculum Training sessions that go beyond the contracted 166 days (or equal hours) will default to the Extended Employment (12.3. A or B) Section of this same contract.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

# **Student Teacher Program**

# 9.1 Supervising Teacher Program

A supervising teacher shall supervise only in his field of preparation. Any teacher may refuse the assignment of a student teacher. A supervising teacher shall hold a valid Montana teaching certificate.

# 9.2 Supervising Teacher - Cooperation

The supervising teacher and the Office of the Superintendent shall work directly with the college or university program coordinator, who shall assist in developing extensive opportunities for the student teacher to observe and practice the arts and skills of the teaching profession.

# 9.3 Supervising Teacher - Remuneration

Monies made available to the district by placing college or university students shall be paid to the supervising teacher.

#### 9.4 Student Teachers - Use as Substitutes

Every effort shall be made not to use a student teacher as a substitute teacher nor shall any student teacher be placed in sole charge of a classroom until the college or university coordinator and the supervising teacher have mutually agreed that this experience is desirable.

#### ARTICLE X

# **Teacher Evaluation**

# **10.1** Monitoring and Observation of Teacher

The formal evaluations of the work performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly by a representative of the Office of the Superintendent and with full knowledge of the teacher. Administration will notify tenured teachers by October 1<sup>st</sup> if they are to be evaluated that year.

#### **ARTICLE XI**

#### **Leaves**

#### 11.1 Discretionary Leave

- A. All regularly employed Teachers shall receive twelve (12) discretionary leave days each school year. Part-time teachers will be granted pro-rated discretionary leave based upon their FTE.
- B. The full amount of current year discretionary leave and accumulated sick leave will be in effect from the starting date of the contract.
- C. Discretionary leave may be used for illness or personal business. Leaves of more than three (3) consecutive days for purposes other than illness shall be applied for through the Superintendent and approved by the Board of Trustees. When a Teacher has used all twelve (12) days of discretionary leave in one year, no further leaves for personal business will be granted unless applied for through the Superintendent and approved by the Board of Trustees.
- D. Any portion of the Teacher's annual discretionary leave allotment that is unused will be credited to the Teacher as accumulated sick leave to be used for sick leave purposes the following school year. Sick leave is accumulative up to, but not beyond, one hundred five (105) days, in addition to the twelve (12) discretionary days granted each year.
- E. The School District shall notify each Teacher in writing, at least annually, of the number of discretionary and sick days accrued.
- F. All leaves granted under the provisions of this Section will be in units of full days or half days. Appropriate and non-habitual absences of 2/7 or less may not result in a loss of benefits. This determination will be made by the building administrator.
- G. Teachers will be granted discretionary leave for personal business with pay during each school year upon written application to the principal.
  - 1. Application for permission to take a leave for personal business under this Section should be submitted to the principal at least five (5) working days, but no less than twenty-four (24) hours before taking such leave, except in the case of emergency.
  - 2. Discretionary leave for personal business may not be approved during periods of emergency when there is an unusual number of Teacher absences or when there is an inadequate supply of substitute teachers.
  - 3. Discretionary leave may not be used during the first and last week of the school year.
  - 4. If leave for personal business is approved and a Teacher has used all of his/her discretionary leave, salary deductions shall be made at a rate of 1/187 of the Teacher's salary.
- H. Sick leave may be used for the following reasons:

- 1. Parental leave immediately following the Teacher's child's birth or placement for adoption;
- 2. Quarantine resulting from exposure to a contagious disease;
- 3. Medical, dental or eye examination or treatment;
- 4. Bereavement
- 5. Care of or attendance to an immediate family member for medical reasons:
- 6. Care of or attendance to significant others may be granted at the discretion of the School District for serious illness or injury to significant others, based on what is reasonable for each specific situation.
- I. Sick leave days shall first be deducted from the annual discretionary leave. Sick leave days that exceed the annual discretionary leave shall be deducted from the accrued sick leave days credited to the Teacher.
  - 1. If a Teacher has used all of his/her accrued sick leave, salary deductions shall be made at a rate of 1/187 of the Teacher's salary for each day used beyond the accrued sick leave.
- J. The School District may require a Teacher to furnish a medical certificate from a qualified physician as evidence of illness, indicating such absence was due to illness, in order to qualify for sick leave pay. In the event that a medical certificate will be required, the Teacher will be so advised before he/she returns to school.
- K. A Teacher may, at the Teacher's discretion, on an annual basis donate up to two
   (2) days of sick leave to the sick leave bank. Teacher is eligible for the stipend in
   M. if they were at 105 days prior to donating to the sick leave bank and they meet
   the other conditions of unused discretionary leave. The total number of days in the
   bank shall be cumulative to sixty (60) days.
  - 1. In the event a staff member has exhausted all sick leave due to a catastrophic illness or accident, he/she will be permitted to apply to a committee for additional sick leave, up to thirty (30) days per documented illness or accident. The maximum number of additional sick leave days that can be used by a staff member in a school year is sixty (60) days.
    - a. The committee shall consist of the superintendent, a board member, and one member of the Manhattan Education Association.
- L. When a Teacher resigns, retires, loses a position due to a reduction in force, or dies, the Teacher (or the Teacher's named beneficiary or estate) shall be entitled to a cash payment equaling one fifth (1/5) of the Teacher's accumulated sick leave and discretionary leave, based on the daily rate of 1/187 of the final year's teaching contract.
  - 1. Teachers losing a position through a reduction in force may choose to either receive the cash payment previously specified, or have their unencumbered sick leave credit restored upon recall.

- 2. Teachers under contract for the upcoming school year will forfeit the accumulated leave payment if a resignation is received after July 1.
- 3. Teachers who choose to leave the district prior to the end of the school year, or are terminated by the district prior to the end of the school year are ineligible to receive accumulated leave pay.
- M. Once a teacher has reached the maximum of one hundred five (105) days in their accumulated sick leave, the district will offer the following stipend for unused discretionary leave:
  - 1. One (1) day used / Eleven (11) discretionary leave days remaining a. Five hundred dollar (\$500) stipend paid in June
  - 2. Two (2) days used / Ten (10) discretionary leave days remaining
    - a. Two hundred fifty dollar (\$250) stipend paid in June
  - 3. The stipend will be prorated by the individual teacher's FTE.

# 11.2 Leave for Civic Duties

Teachers will be permitted to appear in court as witnesses or to serve on juries if subpoenaed and not excused. Their daily salary rate is to be continued while on jury duty, however, the stipend paid by the court will be deposited at the school business office. The teacher may keep monies remitted by the court for expenses or mileage allowance while performing jury duty.

#### 11.3 Leave for Public Office

Leave without pay will be allowed for teachers elected to and serving in the legislative assemblies. Requests for such leave shall be made to the Office of the Superintendent allowing sufficient time to make arrangements for a substitute.

#### 11.4 Extended Leave

Extended leave may be granted to teachers without salary for such reasons as death in family, extended family illness, or professional growth. The leave must be in writing and meet the Board of Trustees approval. A teacher returning from extended leave shall be restored to his or her teaching position without loss of seniority, status, or pay.

#### 11.4.1 Extended Leave for Professional Growth

Extended leave for professional growth without salary may be granted to a tenured teacher. A letter requesting this leave must be to the superintendent no later than 7 days prior to a regularly scheduled monthly board meeting and no less than thirty (30) days prior to the first day of the leave. The leave must meet the approval of the Board of Trustees, and unless approved by the board, may not exceed twenty contracted days. The teacher returning from extended leave shall be restored to his or her teaching position without loss of seniority, status, or placement on the salary schedule.

# 11.5 Accumulated Sick Days

Teachers shall be given a written accounting of accumulated sick leave days at least once a year. Individual teachers may request accumulated sick leave day's status throughout the year.

#### 11.6 Sabbatical Leave

- A. Any full-time teacher who has at least five (5) continuous years of service with the district shall be eligible for a sabbatical leave for up to one school year.
- B. The leave shall be granted for a program of study or any other activity the board deems appropriate and advantageous to the district.
- C. Application for this leave shall be submitted in writing by March 1 of the year in which the leave is to begin.
- D. The school district shall pay the district share for continuing health insurance coverage for teachers who are involved in a program of study, approved by the School Board, during the year of their sabbatical.
- E. Teachers shall return to the position which they left, or an equivalent one. There will be no loss of tenure or accrued sick leave during the year of the sabbatical. The teacher's movement on the salary schedule is limited as defined in 12.4(c).
- F. One sabbatical leave will be available in each district each year.

# 11.7 Professional Leave for Special Education Teachers

A. At the end of each semester, the district will provide a substitute for one day for each certified special education teacher for paperwork purposes.

#### **ARTICLE XII**

## **Professional Compensation**

# 12.1 Salary Schedule

The basic salaries of teachers covered in this Agreement are set forth in Article 13 that is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. Such salary schedule shall remain in effect during the designated periods.

# **12.2** Recognition for Experience

The District shall grant up to ten (10) years of outside teaching experience.

# 12.3 Extended Employment

- A. Teachers, in any given year, who may be additionally employed in a teaching capacity for more than their contract days shall be paid at the daily rate of 1/187 of their current year's contract salary.
- B. The school district may employ teachers in any other capacity in addition to their school year contract on an as needed basis for curriculum work, grants, and special program development at an hourly rate equal to the salary step of BA with 2 years of experience.

# 12.4 Recognition for Additional Preparation

- A. A Bachelor's Degree in Education must have been attained before Credits for Advancement on the salary schedule will be accepted. (BA + 10, BA + 20, BA + 30, MA) Advancement on the salary schedule must conform to at least one of the following criteria:
  - 1. Subject Matter Credits For secondary teachers, subject matter credits are graduate credits in the Montana Certification Endorsement areas in which the teacher has been assigned instructional duties. For elementary teachers, subject matter credits are graduate credits in social studies, physical education, health, music, science, language arts, mathematics and art.
  - 2. Education Credits Education credits are graduate credits in Educational Administration, Education Counseling, Secondary Education, Elementary Education, and Education Foundations.
  - 3. Retroactive to the 2001-2002 school year, the school district at the discretion of the administration can approve non-graduate credit required for a teacher to become certified in a specific area because of school district needs. This provision will allow a teacher to advance beyond the BA Plus 10 using undergraduate credits.
  - 4. The B.A. Plus 10, B.A. Plus 20, and B.A. Plus 30 columns are a means for teachers to pursue educational offerings beyond the B.A. column. Committee approved undergraduate credits that will enhance the teacher's instructional abilities will be accepted for the B.A. Plus 10. Committee approved graduate credits that will enhance the teacher's instructional abilities will be the only credits accepted for the B.A. Plus 20 and B.A. Plus 30 column. Final analysis of the credits will be a function of the Credit Evaluation Committee.
  - 5. Masters Degrees Masters degrees are recognized provided the credits conform to Article 12.4 A.1 and/or Article 12.4 A.2 of this Agreement.

- B. Credit Evaluation Committee:
  - 1. The Credit Evaluation Committee shall be composed of the superintendent and one teacher.
  - 2. The Credit Evaluation Committee will meet with teacher(s) planning graduate work to determine the course work acceptable for advancement on the salary schedule.
  - 3. All transcripts will be evaluated and acceptable graduate credits determined by the committee.
  - 4. The committee will recommend to advance or not advance a teacher on the salary schedule.
  - 5. A teacher may appeal this decision to the Board. The Board's decision shall be considered final.
- C. A teacher must inform the superintendent in writing by March 1<sup>st</sup> of his/her intent to move from one column of preparation to another. This written notification must specify if the teacher is moving the maximum of two columns. The Lane Change Request Document will be provided by the Superintendent's Office in the Orientation Packet on the first PIR day of each school year.
- D. A quarter is defined as fifteen (15) quarter hours of credit or ten (10) semester hours of credit. Documentation of additional professional preparation, if sufficient to advance the teacher's preparation status, shall be submitted to the Office of the Superintendent not later than the 20th day of September. This documentation may be in the form of an official transcript, course grade slip, or advisor's letter.
- E. Official transcripts must be provided to the superintendent before advancement on the salary schedule will become effective.
- F. In moving from one preparation column to another, a person will move down one step for experience and can move a maximum of two preparation columns (i.e. a person with a BA with 5 years experience on obtaining additional preparation shall move to a maximum of a BA + 20 at the six year step.)

  Employees in the shaded area of the salary schedule when moving from one preparation column to another, a person will move down one step for experience and can move a maximum of one preparation columns.
- G. Article 12.4 cannot reduce the level of attainment presently allowed to any teacher.
- H. Teachers holding current National Board Certification will receive an additional \$1000 stipend.
- I. Teachers with a doctorate will receive a \$2500 per year stipend.
- J. Beginning with the 2009-2010 school year, Certified Staff members may begin to complete graduate level coursework beyond a Master's degree. No coursework completed prior to the 2009-2010 school year may be used. Upon the completion of approved 15 graduate semester hours, the Certified Staff member will receive an additional \$500.00 stipend annually. All requirements, criteria, and analysis established in 12.4 A, B, and C will be utilized in 12.4-J.
- K. Beginning with the 2009-2010 school year, Certified Staff members may begin to complete graduate level coursework that will lead to a new endorsement area. No coursework completed prior to the 2009-2010 school year may be used. Upon the completion of an approved new endorsement area, the Certified Staff member will receive an additional \$200.00 stipend annually per endorsement(s) plus \$500.00

annual stipend as referenced in J above, for the approved 15 graduate semester hours earned toward the endorsement(s). All requirements, criteria, and analysis established in 12.4 - A, B, and C will be utilized in 12.4 - K.

# 12.5 Pay Periods

- A. Each teacher may elect to receive his/her contract salary in 10 or 12 payments.
- B. Payroll checks shall be issued on the 15th day of each month. If the 15th falls on a day when school is not in session, teachers shall receive their payroll checks on the last previous date that school was in session.

# **12.6** Mileage Allowance

Teachers required, in the course of their work, to drive personal automobiles for field trips or other school or district business, shall receive a car allowance equal to the state rate. Liability coverage shall be provided under the district's blanket liability insurance program once the individual teacher's insurance liability coverage has been exhausted.

#### **12.7** Attainment Level

The structure of the immediate successor salary schedule shall remain on attainment level 4.

# 12.8 Teacher Base Pay – HB 143

The "teacher base pay" for the district is the pay specified in BA Step 3 and is the lowest salary for a beginning teacher under the terms of this agreement and is set to coincide with the definition of "teacher base pay" in House Bill 143, 2021 Legislative Session, New Section 1(4)(c). Any cell in the matrix with a pay specified that is lower than BA Step 3 is unused for the purpose of establishing the lowest salary for a beginning teacher under the terms of this agreement and remains in the agreement for the sole purpose of indexing stipends and/or pay of teachers whose placement is beyond BA Step 3 and whose pay is higher than the pay specified in BA Step 3.

# **ARTICLE XIII**

# 2022-2023 BASE SALARY: 33,134

STEP	ВА	BA+10	BA+20	BA+30	MA
0	33,134	34,261	35,420	36,265	37,127
1	34,459	35,718	36,978	37,922	38,866
2	35,785	37,176	38,535	39,579	40,606
3	37,110	38,634	40,092	41,235	42,345
4	38,435	40,092	41,649	42,892	44,085
5	39,761	41,550	43,207	44,549	45,824
6	41,086	43,008	44,764	46,205	47,564
7	42,412	44,466	46,321	47,862	49,303
8	42,412	45,924	47,879	49,519	51,043
9	42,412	47,382	49,436	51,175	52,782
10	42,412	47,382	50,993	52,832	54,522
11	42,412	47,382	52,551	54,489	56,262
12		47,382	52,551	56,146	58,001
13			52,551	57,802	59,741
14				57,802	61,480
15					63,220
16					64,959

Longevity: Teachers with 24 plus years of experience in the district and a masters degree will receive longevity pay of \$500.

<sup>\*</sup> A teacher entering the Manhattan School System with three (3) or fewer years of experience will be placed in their proper lane (BA, BA+10, BA+20, BA+30, MA) but will not be paid less than the BA Step 3 salary amount. The teacher will remain on the BA Step 3 salary amount until he/she has accumulated the district experience necessary to move to the next step. See 12.8.

<sup>\*</sup>It should be noted that the B.A. Plus 30 column is not at a level four attainment level.

2023-2024 BASE SALARY: 33,797

STEP	ВА	BA+10	BA+20	BA+30	MA
0	33,797	34,946	36,129	36,991	37,870
1	35,149	36,433	37,717	38,681	39,644
2	36,501	37,920	39,306	40,371	41,418
3	37,853	39,407	40,894	42,060	43,193
4	39,205	40,894	42,483	43,750	44,967
5	40,556	42,381	44,071	45,440	46,741
6	41,908	43,869	45,660	47,130	48,516
7	43,260	45,356	47,248	48,820	50,290
8	43,260	46,843	48,837	50,510	52,064
9	43,260	48,330	50,245	52,199	53,839
10	43,260	48,330	52,014	53,889	55,613
11	43,260	48,330	53,602	55,579	57,387
12		48,330	53,602	57,269	59,162
13			53,602	58,959	60,936
14				58,959	62,710
15					64,485
16					66,259

Longevity: Teachers with 24 plus years of experience in the district and a masters degree will receive longevity pay of \$500.

<sup>\*</sup> A teacher entering the Manhattan School System with three (3) or fewer years of experience will be placed in their proper lane (BA, BA+10, BA+20, BA+30, MA) but will not be paid less than the BA Step 3 salary amount. The teacher will remain on the BA Step 3 salary amount until he/she has accumulated the district experience necessary to move to the next step. See 12.8.

<sup>\*</sup>It should be noted that the B.A. Plus 30 column is not at a level four attainment level.

# MANHATTAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS

# **EXTRA-DUTY SCHEDULE**

		2022-2023	2023-2024
AP INSTRUCTOR		\$564	\$575
VOCATIONAL ED - BUSINESS		\$331	\$338
VOCATIONAL ED – IND. ARTS		\$331	\$338
VOCATIONAL ED – FCS		\$331	\$338
SCHOOL PLAY		\$884	\$902
CLASS SPONSORSHIP-each			
Advisor			
	JUNIOR HIGH	\$250 static	\$250 static
	FRESHMEN	\$238	\$243
	SOPHOMORES	\$238	\$243
	JUNIORS	\$393	\$401
	SENIORS	\$315	\$321
MUSIC INSTRUMENTAL		\$4,407	\$4,495
MUSIC CHORAL		\$884	\$902
NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY		\$315	\$321
STUDENT COUNCIL		\$470	\$479
BPA		\$884	\$902
FCCLA		\$884	\$902
SkillsUSA		\$884	\$902
GRADUATION COORDINATOR		\$250 static	\$250 static
RtI	CAP OF \$400/YR	\$20/hr static	\$20/hr static

<sup>\*</sup>Extra Duty: In addition to regular school hours

<sup>\*</sup>Management, which includes number of positions and status of whether to maintain the position, is an administrative function.

<b>EXTRA-CURRICULAR SALARIES</b> Base \$33,134 Base \$33,797					
	2000 700,700				
Position	% of base salary	2022-2023	2023-2024		
Athletic Director	24%	\$7,952	\$8,111		
<u>Tier 1</u> - (High Schoo	l) Football, Volleyb	all, Basketball			
Head Coach	14%	\$4,639	\$4,732		
Assistant					
Coach(es)	10%	\$3,313	\$3,380		
Tier 2 - (High School		<del>-</del>			
•		Wrestling, Softball			
Head Coach	12%	\$3,976	\$4,056		
Assistant					
Coach(es)	8%	\$2,651	\$2,704		
	• -				
<u>Tier 3</u> - All Junior Hi	· ·				
Head Coach	7%	\$2,320	\$2,366		
Assistant Coach	5%	\$1,657	\$1,690		
<u>Tier 4</u> - All Elementa	ary Sports K-6 (upo	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
Coach	2%	\$663	\$676		
*Administration will determine the number of coaches based on the number of participants.  *Extra-curricular salary schedule will be evaluated if season length changes.					

#### EXTENDED SEASON STIPEND

- 1. Each head coach of an activity in which his/her team is required to qualify for post season participation will receive \$150 per tournament, meet or playoff game beyond the first qualifying tournament, meet or game. Each assistant coach will receive \$75 per tournament, meet, or playoff game beyond the first qualifying event to attend all practice sessions and games.
- 2. The band instructor and cheerleading coach will receive \$65 per tournament or game of postseason play beyond the regular season/district tournament that warrants no overnight stay; \$150 with a warranted overnight stay. The assistant cheerleading coach will receive \$32.50 per tournament or game of postseason play beyond the regular season/district tournament that warrants no overnight stay; \$75 with a warranted overnight stay.

#### LONGEVITY INCENTIVE

- 1. Athletic Director and Coaches are eligible to receive longevity pay as outlined below. Longevity pay will only accrue with experience gained in the Manhattan School District. Longevity will only be earned with experience gained in the same activity.
- 2. a) Athletic Director and Coaches in a Tier 1 or Tier 2 position will earn \$100 for each completed year of experience as defined below in B.3. The longevity incentive will cap at six years of experience.
  - b) Coaches in a Tier 3 position will earn \$50 for each completed year of experience as defined below in B.3. The longevity incentive will cap at six years of experience.
- 3. Head coaching experience in Tier 1 or Tier 2 will count towards longevity at any level. Assistant coaching experience in Tier 1 or Tier 2 will count towards longevity in that position or any position in Tier 3. Head coaching experience in Tier 3 will count towards longevity only in Tier 3 positions. Assistant coaching experience in Tier 3 will only count towards longevity in that position.
- 4. Coaches in a Tier 4 position are not eligible to receive longevity pay.
- 5. The Athletic Director will confirm the years of experience.

#### **ARTICLE XIV**

# **Benefits**

#### 14.1 Health Insurance

It is understood by and between the parties, that this group health insurance plan and employer contributions toward the cost of the plan, are made available as a group benefit to participating employees and their dependents. The employee entitlement is to the benefits offered by participation in the plan, and not to any dollar amount.

- A. A comprehensive major medical insurance program is provided for each 0.5 FTE 1.0 FTE teacher and his/her dependents
- B. The cost of this program for each employee and his/her dependents shall be borne by the school district, with the monthly premium not to exceed the following amounts: Single \$627.00 / two party \$917.00 / parent/child(ren) \$878.00 / family \$1,120.00. Employer monthly premium rates for the 2023-2024FY will not exceed the following amounts: Single \$656.00 / two party \$959.00 / parent/child(ren) \$918.00 / family \$1,171.00. If an employee chooses an HDHP plan/tier where the premium amount is less than the amount provided by the district, then the District will contribute the difference to a Health Savings Account for those eligible employees.
- C. Each employee will be given the opportunity to participate in the Flexible Compensation Plan. The cost of setting up and administering this program will be borne by the school district.
- D. The union will appoint one member of the current gaining team to serve on the Insurance Committee.

## **14.2** Mutual Selection of Carriers

All insurance program carriers shall be mutually selected after program specifications have been agreed to through the negotiating process, as per state statute 2-18-702 and 2-18-703.

# 14.3 Continuity of Coverage

All insurance coverage under this article shall remain in force during the life of this Agreement and until a successor agreement has been ratified.

#### 14.4 Retired Teacher Benefits

Retired teachers shall be eligible to continue participation in the district group insurance programs, as provided by M.C.A. 2-18-704. It shall be the responsibility of said teacher to make appropriate arrangements with the district office to pay to the school district the monthly premiums in advance of the premium due dates.

# 14.5 Enrollment/Discontinuation of Health Benefits

Under normal circumstances, teachers who are new to the district will be enrolled in the group insurance plan on September 1st.

The school district will continue district insurance contributions up to September 1<sup>st</sup> for teachers who leave the school district at the end of the school year. Teachers who choose to leave the school district prior to the end of the school year, or are terminated by the district prior to the end of the school year become ineligible for district insurance contribution thirty (30) days from the

date of notification/termination. Teachers who are excused from their contract in good standing prior to the end of the school year will be eligible to receive the district contribution for ninety (90) days from the date of the last date of work in the district.

As provided by state and/or federal regulations, any teacher leaving the system or being terminated may elect to continue participation in the group health insurance program after the above timelines provided he/she pays the entire premium for such coverage commencing with the next month's premium. It shall be the responsibility of said teacher to make the appropriate arrangements with the district business office to pay the school district in advance of the premium due dates.

# 14.6 Early Retirement Payment

Upon retirement, teachers shall receive a payment equal to thirty-five percent (35%) of their final year's salary. Notification of intent to retire and the option chosen must be submitted in writing to the superintendent's office by March 1 of the school year preceding the employee's final teaching year. The letter of intent to retire may be retracted by the employee before July 1 of the same year it was submitted. The letter of intent to retire cannot be retracted on or after July 1 of the same year submitted by the employee without review and consideration by a committee of the superintendent, a board member, and a gaining member. This payment is for early retirement and will be available in the twenty-fifth (25) through thirtieth (30) years only. If a teacher has fractions of teaching years, those fractions will be rounded up or down dependent upon the fraction. (Over ½ is rounded up and under ½ is rounded down.) This payment is available only to teachers who have spent five (5) years in the Manhattan School System.

- A. Option 1: Early Retirement Payments and Accumulated Leave Payment will be paid by June 30<sup>th</sup> of the year of retirement.
- B. Option 2: Early Retirement Payments and Accumulated Leave Payment will be paid after January 1, and before January 15, of the school year following the school year in which the teacher retires.

# 14.7 Accumulated Leave Payment

A lump sum of twenty (20) percent of accumulative sick leave, based upon the daily rate of 1/187 of the final year's teaching contract, will be paid to teachers upon termination. Teachers under contract for the upcoming school year will forfeit the accumulated leave payment if a resignation is received after July 1.

Teachers who choose to leave the district prior to the end of the school year, or are terminated by the district prior to the end of the school year are ineligible to receive accumulated leave pay.

#### **ARTICLE XV**

# **Effect of Agreement**

#### **15.1** Effect

This agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement between the School Board and the Association. The provisions herein relating to salary, hours, fringe benefits, and other terms and conditions or employment supersede any and all prior agreements, resolutions, practices, rules, or regulations concerning salary, hours, fringe benefits and other terms and conditions for employment consistent with these provisions.

# 15.2 Changes of Agreement

During its term, this Agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in a written and signed amendment to this Agreement.

# 15.3 Severability

Should any article, section or clause of the Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, said article, section or clause, as the case may be, shall be automatically deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violated the law. The remaining articles, sections, and clauses shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement if not affected by the deleted article, section, or clause. If such provisions exist which are contrary to Montana or Federal law, at the request of either party, negotiations and agreements shall be reached in order to alter said section(s).

# 15.4 Duplication and Distribution

Copies of the Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the board within thirty (30) days after the Agreement is signed. Copies shall be presented to all teachers now employed, hereafter employed or considered for employment by the Board.

#### **ARTICLE XVI**

# **Term/Re-opener**

#### 16.1 Effective Period

This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2022 and shall continue in full force until June 30, 2024.

# 16.2 Renewal and Re-Opening of Agreement

Said agreement will automatically be renewed and continued in force and effect for additional periods of one year unless the Association gives notice to the Board and the Board gives notice to the Association not later than February 1st prior to the aforesaid expiration date anniversary thereof, of its desire to reopen certain provisions of the agreement and/or additions to this Agreement, and to negotiate over the terms of these provisions. The notice to reopen shall name these provisions. This contract can be reopened by either party for the 2023 - 2024 school year for insurance and/or language changes only.

This Agreement is signed	<u>June 13, 2023</u> Date	
IN WITNESS THEREOF: For the Manhattan Education Association		For the Board of Trustees School District #3
Doug O'Brien President		Robert Brownell Chairman
Amanda Priquette Secretary		Ann Heisler Clerk

# APPENDIX A

# **GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM**

Aggı	rieved Person	Date Filed
Scho	ol	Subject Area or Grade
1.	Date Grievance Occurred	
2.	Statement of Grievance:	
3.	Action or Relief Sought:	
Signa	ature of Aggrieved	 Date

# LEVEL I.

1.	Decision of Principal or Immediate Supervisor:	
Signa	ture of Principal or Immediate Supervisor	Date
2.	Aggrieved Person's Response:	
		I accept the above decision
		I hereby refer the above decision to next step of the grievance procedure.
Signa	ture of Aggrieved	Date

# LEVEL II.

1.	Date Received by Superintendent or Designee_	
2.	Decision of Superintendent or Designee:	
Sign	ature of Superintendent or Designee	Date
3.	Aggrieved Person's Response:	
		I accept the above decision
		I hereby refer the above decision to next step of the grievance procedure.
Sign	ature of Aggrieved	Date

# LEVEL III.

1.	Date Submitted to the Board of Trustees		
2. Disposition and Award of the Board of Trustees:			
<u>C:</u>	atives of the Chairman of the Doord	Doto	
Sign	ature of the Chairman of the Board	Date	